Public Document Pack

Penallta House, Ty Penalita, ‘
Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,
¥strad Mynach, Ystrad Mynach, c A E R pﬂl '. LY
Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG ENNGOR BWRDEISTIREE SINGL
www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk
For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Rebecca Barrett
(Tel: 01443 864245 Email: barrerm@caerphilly.gov.uk)
Date: 6th May 2015
Dear Sir/Madam,

A meeting of the Bryn Compost Liaison Group will be held in the Ebbw Room, Penalita House,
Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach on Tuesday, 12th May, 2015 at 2.00 pm to consider the matters contained
in the following agenda.

Yours faithfully,

Chris Burns
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AGENDA

Pages

1 To receive apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interest.
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on this agenda in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for

both Councillors and Officers.
To receive and note the following minutes: -

3 Bryn Compost Liaison Group held on 13th January 2015 (copy attached).

4 Matters arising.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

(e

[ R




5 Updates from Natural Resources \Wales (dataset attached).

6 Review of the Frequency of Meetings (verbal update).

Circulation:
Councillors: A. Angel, D. Bolter, H.W. David, W. David, G. J. Hughes, M.P. James, S. Morgan, D.V. Poole
(Chair) and J.A. Pritchard

Residents: Mr J. Cuthbert, Mrs G. Davies, Mr M. Davies, Mrs A. Gray, Mr W. Griffiths, Mr G. Mahony,
Mr T. Matthews, Mr G. Reynolds, Mr J. Szura and Mrs C. Woods

Gelliargwellt Farm: Mr A. Price
Public Health Wales: Mr H. Brunt, Mrs M. Bowley, Ms T. Deacon and Dr G. Richardson
Natural Resources Wales: Mr J. Goldsworthy and Mrs E. Roe

And Appropriate Officers



enda ltem 3

Regeneration and Environment Scn.gny Committee — 19.05.15

N
CAERPHILLY

COoOUNTY BOROUIGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIRD

CAERFFILI
> 4

BRYN COMPOST LIAISON GROUP

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, YSTRAD MYNACH
ON TUESDAY, 13TH JANUARY 2015 AT 2.00 P.M.

PRESENT:
Councillor D. V. Poole - Chair
Councillors:

H.W. David, W. David, G.J. Hughes, J.A. Pritchard, S. Morgan

Together with:
Residents: Mrs A. Gray, Mrs G. Davies, Mr G. Reynolds, Mrs C. Woods
Gelliargwellt Farm: Mr P. Colley, Mr R. Thomas, Mrs J. Morgan
Natural Resources Wales: Mr J. Goldsworthy, Mr. J. Harrison, Mrs E. Roe
Environmental Health: Ms C. Edwards

Officers: R. Barrett (Committee Services Officer)

1. CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENT
The Chair opened the meeting and wished the Group a Happy New Year.

It was announced that Mr John Harrison would shortly be retiring from Natural Resources
Wales after 41 years of service, and therefore this would be his last Liaison Group meeting.
Members asked for their appreciation for Mr Harrison’s hard work and efforts to be placed on
record, and wished him a long and happy retirement.

Mr Harrison thanked Members and stated that it had been a pleasure to work with the Group
over the years, and introduced his replacement at NRW, Mr Jon Goldsworthy. It was
explained that Natural Resources Wales was currently undergoing a restructure, with Mr
Harrison’s remit being shared amongst several officers, but that Mrs Emily Roe would retain
responsibility for matters within the Caerphilly borough.

The Chair also welcomed Mrs Jennifer Morgan to the meeting, who was in attendance to
observe proceedings as a new employee of Bryn Quarry Ltd.

Page 1



Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee — 19.05.15

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A. Angel, D. Bolter and M. James,
together with local resident representatives Mr J. Cuthbert, Mr M. Davies, Mr W. Giriffiths, Mrs
P. Lapsa, Mr T. Matthews and Mr J. Szura, and Public Health Wales representatives Dr G.
Richardson, Mr H. Brunt and Mrs T. Deacon. An apology for absence was also received from
Mr G. Mumford (District Environmental Health Officer).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of
the meeting.

MINUTES - 25TH SEPTEMBER 2014

The minutes of the Bryn Compost Liaison Group meeting held on 25th September 2014 were
received and noted.

MATTERS ARISING

Reference was made to the Composting Best Practice Document and NRW explained that
guidance was currently being developed on this matter but was not yet ready for general
circulation. This document is being prepared by the Environment Agency and NRW advised
that it would be made available to the Group once the completed version had been published.

A request had been received at the last Liaison Group for NRW routine inspections to be
included in the dataset of odour complaints, and it was noted that this was now being included
as part of the dataset reports from NRW.

At the previous meeting of the Liaison Group, a query was raised in relation to odour
breaches at the Bryn Compost site. It was agreed at that meeting that information regarding
the number of breaches and type of breach recorded against the Bryn Compost site for the
current year be forwarded to Members. It was confirmed and noted that this action had now
been completed.

UPDATES FROM NATURAL RESOURCES WALES (NRW)

The Group were referred to the overview of odour complaint data for Bryn Compost between
1st September and 31st December 2014, with the data reviewed in a daily format and each
month displayed on a separate graph. Each set of data detailed the number of calls received
by NRW, together with the type of odour detected if NRW officers attended the site in
response to the complaint received.

In regard to the September dataset, Mrs Emily Roe of NRW explained that NRW had received
advance notification from the site in regards to slurry spreading activities on 9th, 22nd and
23rd September 2014. A number of odour complaints were received on these dates, which
were attributed by NRW to these farming activities. In addition, a routine inspection was
carried out by NRW on 17th September 2014 which detected farming odours.

A number of odour complaints were received by NRW on 25th September 2014, and officers
telephoned Bryn Compost who confirmed that no farming activity was taking place that day.
NRW officers attended the site in response to the complaints received but were unable to
detect an odour. In response to Members’ comments regarding a lack of detectable odour, it
was explained that the wind was variable that day and that the odour could have travelled

Page 2



Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee — 19.05.15

from farming activities within neighbouring farms. The Group were also advised that odour
detection was sometimes a matter of timing and that the odour could have dissipated on this
occasion before NRW staff arrived at the site.

Regarding the October dataset, it was explained that a number of calls were received on 2nd
October 2014. NRW officers attended site and detected a mixture of farming odours and
composting odours. Bryn Compost staff were already aware of the issue and explained that
they had switched on the composting aerator that morning when the wind direction was
blowing away from Gelligaer. Staff detected a change in wind direction towards Gelligaer and
switched off the aerator, and NRW officers explained that the site were therefore not in breach
as they had acted in accordance with wind conditions.

November 2014 saw a low level of odour complaints with a routine inspection carried out by
NRW towards the end of the month.

With regards to the December dataset, a low level of odour complaints were again received,
with routine inspections on 3rd December 2014 and 16th December 2014 detecting farming
odours, which were in line with advance notification of farming activities received from the site.

Members’ attention was directed to an odour complaint on 4th December detailed on the
graph. Mrs Roe explained that NRW had received notification from the site that they were
moving compost from inside the in-vessel composting facility down to the outside quarried
area. Communications between NRW, Bryn Compost and the complainant determined that
whilst the compost odour was detectable, it was not a strong odour. As Bryn Compost were
preparing the facility to accept compost waste in over the Christmas period, the complainant
was content for the continued movement of the compost down to the quarry, as this would
then result in no movement (which could create odours) over the Christmas holidays.

A Member raised a query regarding a complaint made on Monday 1st December 2014. This
complaint stated that odours had been detected over the last weekend of November in the
Nelson area. Mrs Roe explained that as this call had been received in December, it had been
logged against December’s dataset, and reiterated the importance of residents logging odour
complaints as soon as they detect them in order for them to be attended in a timely manner.

Members’ attention was also directed to the two other graphs contained within the agenda
papers, which displayed the number of odour complaints over a two year period, and Mrs Roe
explained that this graph showed a downward trend in complaints over this period. The other
graph displayed the number of complaints over the same period, split into the location of each
odour complaint.

The Chair invited questions and a Member asked if they could raise a general question
regarding Bryn Compost, which was agreed by the Chair. It was advised that a local resident
had found a number of pieces of chipboard, laminated wood and MDF in the area surrounding
the Bryn Compost site and farm, and had concerns that these types of wood were being used
for animal bedding. NRW officers confirmed that farms were not permitted to use these types
of waste wood as animal bedding, and stated that they would arrange to collect these
samples from the local resident and investigate the matter accordingly.

A Member referred to the Urdd National Eisteddfod 2015 event which would be held in the
grounds of Llancaiach Fawr manor, and queried the progress made on the management
plans for the event. Ms Ceri Edwards, Environmental Health Manager, assured Members that
the Council’'s Event Safety Advisory Group were looking at all aspects of the event, including
the likelihood of composting odours and slurry spreading activities being detectable during
that week. Ms Edwards referenced Environmental Health’s good working relationship with the
Bryn Compost site and farm, and explained that the site prepared their work schedules in
advance. Ms Edwards indicated that she would contact Mr Price in order to explore the
possibility that the schedule could be tailored to accommodate the event. It was agreed that
Environmental Health liaise with Bryn Compost to arrange for the possibility of odour
releases around the Eisteddfod week to be minimised.

Page 3



Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee — 19.05.15

At the previous meeting of the Liaison Group, it had been agreed that the frequency of
meetings would be reviewed, and detailed discussion took place regarding this matter.
Members raised a number of concerns regarding the proposal to decrease the meeting
frequency. They referred to the latest dataset of odour complaints, and stated that whilst the
amount of complaints had reduced, NRW were still receiving calls regarding odours detected
around the Bryn Compost site.

Mrs Roe asked Members to note the marked decrease in calls received as a result of
composting odours, making reference to the two year dataset of complaints received. It was
explained that the cause of the odours were usually attributed to farming activities, not
composting activities, and asked Members to bear this in mind. Mrs Roe also reiterated that
the spike in odour complaints received in September 2014 was due to farming activities.

A Member raised a concern that residents were becoming complacent regarding detecting
and reporting odours within the area. Mrs Roe stated that she did not believe this to be the
case, and referred Members to the dataset showing a peak in complaints on 2nd October
2014. It was explained that NRW were still receiving a high level of calls when farming
activities occurred and therefore residents were continuing to recognise and acknowledge
odours within the area.

Concerns were also raised that it could take up to two hours for NRW officers to attend site in
response to odour complaints, by which time the odour could have dissipated. Mrs Roe
advised Members that she could be at site in as little as ten minutes if she was on standby.
Ms Edwards added that Environmental Health staff were in the area regularly, including during
the evening, and could report back on odour issues in the area. In addition, some Public
Protection staff also lived in the area and provided feedback on odours within the area. Ms
Edwards also stated that a significant improvement in the reduction of composting odours had
been detected over the last 12 months.

Members queried the earlier explanation given in that NRW officers had telephoned Bryn
Compost to establish the cause of an odour complaint on 25th September 2014. Mrs Roe
explained that there were a number of trigger points involved in the process and prior to the
number of complaints meeting this point, the site would be contacted by telephone for an
explanation of the odour. It was confirmed that visits were generally undertaken following
such calls to verify that farming odours, if given as an explanation, were not masking
composting odours.

Members gave a number of further reasons for their reluctance to agree to the reduction of
the meeting frequency from every three months to every four months. They explained that
they had worked hard to establish the Group, and that its role would be undermined if they
were to reduce the frequency of meetings whilst odour complaints were still being received. It
was explained that Members had developed a good working relationship with NRW and were
mindful that this could be affected if the frequency of meetings were to be reduced.

Members of the Group acknowledged the marked improvement in communications between
all parties and the significant improvements to the data received regarding odour complaints.
These comments were supported by the Chair, who acknowledged the responsibility of the
Group in contributing towards a good quality of life for local residents, and welcomed the
views of the Group on this matter.

It was agreed that the Liaison Group would meet in three months’ time, with a decision to be
made on the meeting frequency at that time.

The meeting closed at 2.44 p.m.

Page 4



Agenda Item 5

Cyfoeth
Naturiol
Cymru

Natural
Resources
Wales

Please find attached the overview of complaint data for Bryn Compost

Daily Data January 2015 - March 2015.

¢ All 3 months are now on the same chart. The number of calls received by NRW
are in blue.

e Ifwe have attended these reports there is a matching column on that date showing
the odour detected (brown = farm, compost = yellow, no odour = green).

¢ Where the blue columns stand alone, this means we did not attend on that day.

e When we have carried out a Routine Inspection I have inserted this onto the graph
for the corresponding day. The colour of the text here indicates if we detected an
odour outside of the site boundary at this time using the same colour code as
above

e | have also included some wind direction information in text above each day
complaints were received. Where the wind direction = potential, this means there
was a potential for the odours to be coming from the Bryn Compost facility &
Gelliargwellt Uchaf Farm direction. Where wind = wrong direction, this indicates
that the source of any odour could not have come from the Bryn Compost Facility
or Gelliargwellt Uchaf Farm.

Two further graphs and map are included
e Odour Complaints for Bryn Compost March 2013 -March 2015 (inc trend line)

e No. of complainants by Location 15t January to 315t March 2015 - this is
accompanied by a map showing the location of where the odours were detected.
Postcodes were centralised and no specific addresses were used in the creation
of this map. '

Page5



Odour Complaints January - March 2015

"uoi3aaulp Suoum = MAN/IN 3|geasueys puip

leruajod = MS PUIM

K
&
D

"palyuap!
10U INOPQ = MS PUIM

‘we Ul sjjed ‘wid uj 350dwod Jo JUSWIAOIA
‘we u) uipeaids A1n|s Jo uolealiloN

‘padns Bulaq ud Aunys - ||ns
A1ng uo11aa4Ip Suoim = INI PUIM

[enuajod = p\S puln, TE—)

ﬁi"b @@Px? &éﬁ? ; & ytﬁ’é @@é’@

|ennuaiod = pAS PUIM
uoroadsu| S - ST0Z/20/6T |

Suipeauds Auin|s pawuijuod= AS PUIM =

T
&

S

uol3234ip uoJm = IN PUIp —

uo23.1p 8uoim = IN PUIM e |

Suipeauds Aun|s
pawuluod - uoiIBIIp ;
Suoim = INN/N UiV I —— |

Buipeaids Auin|s pawuaiyuod

- voppau1p SuoIM = INN puiy, E— |

uo132a.1p Suoim = INN/N PUIM

[eU830d = MSM PUM el |

uo3JIP BUoIM = MINM PUIM —

uoi32a41p Suoim = MN PUIM Pt |
uonadsu| s - §T0Z/10/02 |

[2RUR10d = MS PUIM g

lenuajod = MSM/MN PUIM |

VO

w n < m ~ i o

Page 6

u No Odour

» Calls Recelved = Farm Odour Compost Odour



Odour Complaints for Bryn Compost
March 2013 - March 2015

160

140

120

100
80

Page 7

60

40

lllh

||”T|||||TI

20
0

ST-JeN
ST-9°4

GT-uer

¥1-22Q
¥ T-AON
¥1-320

¥1-das
v1-3ny
Al

yT-unf

vT-AeN
yT-4dy
rT-1eiN
VARCEE
yT-uer

€1-93@
€T-AON
€T-390
€1-das
€1-8ny
€T-INf

€T-unf
€T-AeN
€T-4dy
€T-1eiN



SINIVIdNOO =
SETIIEDS) Jaed|||en aNuUaAy
0Bl | ‘peoy SELEITELD) ‘3e|d uenag SELFITED)
uAigAuad - 3|Iamsuel)2n ‘unepp-A-|Jo3H  |1yua349 uLInauy ‘uamuae)  3so|) suelnr
G B
T

SLNVNIVIJINOD JO Jaquiny

Jesdl||eo
‘pojamAuad

i BN B
-
[4
H

(syueurejdwo) €7 ‘siulejdwo) T¢g)
STOT YdJe ISTE - STOZ Adenuer 1sT
uol1ed0q Ag syueutejdwo) g syuiejdwo) Jo "oN

S

0 W < N O

o
o

Page 8



s
A [
'861¥Z0001 Joquwinu 83uadl| AeAINg 8oUBUPIQ “HL0Z JuBu eseqelep pue ybukdog umoip @ | 3 M ‘W 06E 09z 0EL 0
H r-:-.. r - :
..nl ¥ it
™y o -
Al Jl‘. . ~
AM] | | SoNNY H
nEUAM] 02D 05 N &
! \ * ~ s -. . 5
*<10 S W, SSERN o
[ 3 N\ ¥ f \ -
= I Y ; ¢ f Az
. o T N7 —
5 _ ¥ A | Z 353
F £ ,° yoeiedue|y
A Vi 2 .-".l [
ulighuay Lo ~¥ Aem sl N
~
Nn_ 7 AN : . # \ 'Y KalieA b _,
@I - d N DR s TN s
AT -0 PPAMIUNBAA " ™ fiendy: DR N N s :
R . Auendy: JKN h
VAR EY N IERY = W
\ # L -\ »Be 2d \
) S L “ o Y O 1,...) 3 i 41990
e DL iRm0 =
. \ 'y % \ o9l
. \ ¥ Yo 92 8N
= = / . N [¥) A U
e == ar -~
wt Y \ af ,l sl
¢ : € < A
5 ., I 9T *’.u < ) o
o s o i \ H\ULU l S T, S
- o Tt U:.Ohnf-w ag v
A
=) v bﬁ N Wy rever
SV LTS \ = ;
N S =t a P20 S
o) pe° lljony 9ET __.._ao._., A
¢ \ N\
. ...rb..M ' _n s
- ‘ —
i \\ A Ny - iy \\.\
Bvel W ey 70
S 15 \
.\h.. g i Ul ;/ %
.Q.@ ~ L tf.l“q s \ -—
1
Ly ( — i
\ e Baypon N\ S
s AT G Havpy 2
2 | Ve \
) o AT
S, 5 i 7, N
2 ) puabe
) ¥ Ay A

Kouady AV
TUIWLOIAU

G10¢ Je|y - uep uoneso Aq syureidwo)

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



	Agenda
	3 Bryn Compost Liaison Group held on 13th January 2015 (copy attached).
	5 Updates from Natural Resources Wales (dataset attached).

